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Appendix C – Agency Comments 
 
 
A1 – City of Lafayette 
A2 – Boulder Valley School District 
A3 – City of Boulder and Boulder County 
A4 – Naropa University 
A5 – Boulder Valley School District 
A6 – Denver Regional Council of Governments 
A7 – United States Department of the Interior 
A8 – United States Environmental Protection Agency

 



From: Douglas Short [douglass@cityoflafayette.com] 
Sent: Monday, June 23, 2008 8:25 AM 
To: A. Gray Clark 
Cc: Marcucci, Daniel; Parr, Carol; Gosselin, Mark 
Subject: RE: SH7 - Cherryvale to 75th 
...just for the record my vote is for 4-lanes the entire section from Cherryvale to 75th..........but I 
am but a lowly Public Works Director...so what do I know!! 
 

 
From: A. Gray Clark [mailto:gclark@MULLERENG.COM]  
Sent: Monday, June 23, 2008 8:13 AM 
To: Douglas Short 
Cc: Marcucci, Daniel; Parr, Carol; Gosselin, Mark 
Subject: RE: SH7 - Cherryvale to 75th 

Doug, 
 
The preferred alternative includes 4 lanes on the west end of the project and transitions to a two-
lane section over the Legion Park hill (between Westview Drive and the BNSF Railroad 
Overpass).  
 
Please let me know if you have any further questions. 
 
Thanks, 
 
Gray 
 
A. Gray Clark, P.E. 
Transportation Project Manager 
Muller Engineering Company, Inc. 
777 S. Wadsworth Blvd. 
Suite 4-100 
Lakewood, CO. 80226 
303 988-4939 phone 
303 988-4969 fax 
 
 
 

 
From: Douglas Short [mailto:douglass@cityoflafayette.com]  
Sent: Friday, June 20, 2008 1:33 PM 
To: A. Gray Clark 
Subject: SH7 - Cherryvale to 75th 
 

Is the preferred alternative to extend SH7 with 4 lanes (two in each direction) from Cherryvale to 
75th…??   

Doug Short  
Public Works Director  
City of Lafayette  

A1



From: Jim Blankenship [jim@jlbcivil.com] 
Sent: Monday, June 30, 2008 3:49 PM 
To: A. Gray Clark 
Subject: EA Comment 
Hi Gary, 
 
I am representing Boulder Valley School District for their site on Arapahoe Road.  
We are planning for some adjustments to the parking and circulation on their site 
and was wondering if you forward the contact information for the surveyor who 
prepared the base maps for the CDOT project.  We are looking for someone to 
help with surveying on this site and would like to talk to them. 
  
Thanks 
  
Jim Blankenship, P.E. 
JLB Engineering Consultants 
743 Pear Court 
Louisville, Colorado 80027 
jim@jlbcivil.com 
303-604-1634 
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Naropa University 
2130 Arapahoe Ave. 
Boulder, CO  80302 

 
 
July 22, 2008 
 
Re:  SH 7 Environmental Assessment 
        6287 Arapahoe Rd – Naropa University Campus 
 
To: Robert Hayes, CDOT 
       Gray Clark, Muller Engineering 
 
Gentlemen, 
 
On behalf of Naropa University, I thank you again for your outstanding cooperation in sharing with 
me the details of the environmental assessment (EA) regarding the widening of Arapahoe Road.  In 
general, Naropa University supports the project as we believe it is the correct improvement for 
traffic conditions on east Arapahoe and specifically at the intersection of 63rd street and Arapahoe 
Road.  However, it does create significant problems for us that I will detail below. 
 
Naropa University is a primary employer in Boulder and an important educational and cultural 
contributor to the city, county and surrounding towns.  In total, we employee approximately 400 
faculty and staff with a student body presently of over 1,100.  As a contemplative university, our 
specialty is offering students the opportunity to focus their study on intellect and intuition – both the 
inner and outer experiences of being human.  Thus, though our classes are sometimes tumultuous, 
disturbance from the environment, most of the time, can be distracting to both students and faculty. 
 
As you know, a Naropa campus sits at the northwest corner of the intersection of 63rd street and 
Arapahoe Rd.  This campus will be considerably impacted by the project.  We believe CDOT ought 
to consider strongly the fact that one of our campuses sits squarely in the project zone and the 
impact of the development on our campus and its inhabitants.  
 
Additionally, the campus at 63rd street is not a “satellite campus” as stipulated in the EA.  It is a 
significant property representing one of our three campuses.  Specifically it is the heart and soul of 
our visual and performing arts departments as well as the home of our Extended Studies division. 
University plans call for the build-out of this campus, at the very least, on the existing 5.5 acres.  
The inclusion of our yoga, t’ai-chi and aikido classes will likely occur in the near future.  Our plans 
may include all aspects associated with a functioning university including student housing and 
dormitories.  Also, the expansion of the parking lots, which will be required for development of this 
property, needs to be considered.  Naropa’s future calls for substantial growth of this campus. 
 
With the above in mind, I would like to add to the EA public comments and concerns as well as 
request that considerable attention be brought to the following: 

A4



 
• One overall disturbing factor in the EA is that a university campus, an 

important institution to the City and County of Boulder  will be affected 
by the construction and completed project, yet gets little mention or 
attention in the assessment. 

 
• As mentioned above, we believe Naropa University at 6287 Arapahoe 

Road should be added to Table 3-27 in regard to “Foreseeable Future 
Development”. 

 
• The EA states that 22, 400 square feet of our property falls into the “area 

of acquisition”.  Representing about 10% of our campus, this is 
concerning. 

 
• Due to the alleged historic gas station, the widening of Arapahoe Road, 

east and west,  will dip south near the intersection of 63rd street.  Not 
given any attention is that similarly, due to the location of the gas station, 
63rd street heading north from Arapahoe is projected to be moved 
extensively to the west.  The plan, from all indications, intrudes largely 
on our eastern border.  63rd street will then encroach on our classroom 
building, raising noise, carbon monoxide and visual concerns. 

 
• Classrooms, studios, windows and many roof top units of our heating and 

air conditioning system run parallel to 63rd street. 
 

• The moving of 63rd street to the west will also likely require the 
destruction of  trees along our eastern border. 

 
• The widening of 63rd to the west might intrude on existing parking spaces 

that cannot be lost. 
 

• It is unlikely the university will agree to an increase in the right of way 
associated with the purchase of our land along the eastern border of our 
property. 

 
• The university was not used as a site for noise testing during the EA and 

thus, if appropriate, has not been considered for a noise abatement 
structure.  Obtrusive noise is a concern to a classroom environment.  
“According to CDOT guidelines, the ‘feasibility and reasonableness’ of 
mitigation needs to be considered for all locations that are projected to 
experience noise impacts.” 

 
• Numerous trees parallel Arapahoe Road on Naropa’s southern border.  

One of especial interest in an old, very large cottonwood tree, which sits 
close to the intersection to 63rd street. It is not clear from the engineer’s 
drawings if this and other trees are endangered by the project.  
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Considering the shift in 63rd street to the west, curb and gutter work, the 
12-foot wide multi-use sidewalk, the water quality pond, the widening of 
63rd street, the westbound acceleration lane servicing 63rd street and 
required RTD bus stop with its associated cement pad, some or all of 
these trees are likely in jeopardy. 

 
• Naropa University frowns upon the possible destruction of these trees. 

 
• The size and location of the water detention pond along our borders is 

concerning but not overwhelming.  Specifics of this proposed water 
quality structure need to be examined and brought to acceptable 
university understanding..  We would like to be certain that details related 
to the location, size, maintenance of and impact on pedestrian circulation 
are addressed. 

 
• The EA states, “Because there are very few residential land uses in the 

study area, adverse impacts on persons of advanced age or with 
disabilities are not anticipated”.  In fact, Naropa University does have 
among its ranks individuals in both above categories and attention does 
need to be brought forth in attending to their needs. 

 
 
Let me close by reiterating Naropa University’s general support for this project 
along with our hope that it can be accomplished in ways that are less disruptive 
to the human and natural environment of our 63rd street campus.  We look 
forward to the coming discussions and negotiations.. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Sandy Goldman 
Vice President of Operations 
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From: Fred Sandal 
Sent: Friday, July 25, 2008 8:09 AM 
To: 'Gray Clark (gclark@mullereng.com)' 
Cc: Steve Cook; Steve Rudy 
Subject: Comments on the SH 7 Environmental Assessment 

DRCOG has reviewed the State Highway 7 (Cherryvale Road to 75th Street) Environmental 
Assessment and has the following observations and comments: 

P 1-4:  Not sure what guidance you will receive from FHWA, but throughout the document is 
reference to 2030 MVRTP, even though 2035 MVRTP was adopted in December 2007.  (We 
think it is fine that you modeled 2030.) 

P 1-4:  You should mention that the project is included in the Fiscally Constrained 2035 Regional 
Transportation Plan. 

P 3-30:  There are a couple of references to “forecasting from DRCOG.”  The document should 
be consistent with previous pages that refer to “using” the DRCOG model. 

P 3-30:  You may want to clarify statements such as “the model forecasts SH 7 at capacity in 
2030.”   For what time(s)?  What duration? 

P 3-32:  Do you have the data to back up statements in the first four paragraphs (data, numbers, 
charts, etc.) and should it be included in the document? 

Thank you for allowing us to comment. 

Fred Sandal, AICP 

Long Range Transportation Planning Coordinator 

Denver Regional Council of Governments 

Telephone:  303-480-6731   
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Appendix D – Public Comments 
 
 
E1 – Rose Mary Highman 
F1 – Laurene Facey-Muench 
F2 – Bill Roettker 
F3 – Bill Boothby, Colorado Tennis Facilities 
F4 – James Hoffmeister 
F5 – Albert Chapman, Boulder Door & Millwork Co. 
F6 – Jason Sweeney 
F7 – Marcia Hoffmeister 
F8 – Carol Saunders 
F9 – Tom Conway 
F10 – Anonymous 
F11 – Historic Boulder, Inc. 

 



From: Rose Mary Highman [mailto:gsnaps2000@comcast.net] 
Sent: Friday, July 25, 2008 10:14 PM 
To: A. Gray Clark 
Subject: SH7 input from 7/8/2008 meeting 
 
Mr. Clark,  Thank you for the public hearing re the above.  I appreciate the 6-7' cut at Legion Hill and the 45 
mph and the bike and multi-use lanes.  This should make the road better while at the same time being 
practical.  I've always loved the view as one drops down into Boulder headed east at Legion Hill and your 
plan seems to preserve this by not making the road so wide and so fast that all semblance of country is lost. 
 
As with any cut, please consider surfaces that are not conducive to graffiti.  I appreciate your efforts to 
include RTD stops. 
 
Thank you, Rose Mary Highman 
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Appendix E – Section 4(f) Coordination 
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PRIVILEGED LEGAL ADVICE 
WESTERN LEGAL SERVICES 

 
Office of Chief Counsel 

 
Subject:    Legal Sufficiency Comments on May 5, 2008 Revision to 
 SH 7 (Cherryvale Road to 75th Street) EA/4(f) 
 Bolder County, Colorado 
 
From: Sara Purcell 
 Legal Counsel 
 San Francisco, California 
 
To: Karla S. Petty, P.E. 
 Colorado Division Office 
 Lakewood, Colorado 
 
Attn:             Melinda Urban  
 
 

I am writing to provide comments on my review of the subject EA/4(f) revised in response to my 
earlier comments submitted on April 15, 2008.  In reviewing the revised EA/4(f) I relied on the 
matrix and the “tracked changes” you e-mailed to me May 8th.  I think the May 5, 2008, revised 
document is well done, but I do have the following few minor comments:  
 

1. In Section 4.1, quoting the new Section 4(f) regulations (p 4-1), the quote should be exact 
and the section identified.  I am not sure where the material quoted comes from, but it 
might be best to quote the introduction and paragraphs (a) and (b) of 23 CFR § 774.3 and 
either foot note the section (23 CFR § 774.3 (a) and (b)) or put it after the period at the 
end of the quote. 

2. In Section 4.4, second paragraph (p 4-14), delete “lands that are part of a historic” 
because this paragraph applies to all 4(f) properties.   

3. In Section 4.4.2, in “The following measures..” clause (p 4-18), rewrite it to say “The 
following measures to avoid, minimize, mitigate and enhance the below-listed 4(f) 
resources were taken into consideration in making the de minimis finding for project 
impacts to these historic properties:”   

4. In Section 4.4.2, after the discussion of impacts to the DeBacker-Tenenbaum House (p 4-
19, the wording is awkward due to the new material.  I suggest changing the first 
sentence by adding an “s” to “finding,” adding “with regard to these six properties” after 
“no adverse effect” and dropping “s” from “reflects.”  I suggest the second sentence be 
changed by deleting “is the” and “based on this finding, and” and changing “taking” to 
“takes.” 

 
Once the changes in the above comments are made, I consider the revision of May 5, 2008, to be 
legally sufficient in accordance with 23 CFR § 774.7 (d).  If you disagree with any changes 
specified in my comments, or you have any questions about them, please give me a call at (415) 
744-2644.  If the changes are made as indicated, I do not need to see this document again. 
  

Memorandum 

Date:  May 19, 2008 

In Reply Refer To:  
 HCC-WE 
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